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                       WHARTON COUNTY, TEXAS 
                        FUEL BID SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Submit to:  Commissioners’ Court of Wharton County 
   Barbara A. Starling, County Auditor 
   Wharton County Courthouse Annex 
   309 E. Milam, Suite 300 
   Wharton, Texas 77488 
 
For:   Wharton County Precincts 1, 2, 3 and 4  

A. Ultra-Low Sulfur Dyed Diesel 
B. Unleaded, Regular Gas (Bobtail Load Only) 

 
Due Date: Wednesday, October 22, 2025 at 1:00 p.m. in the County Auditor’s Office when all bids 

will be opened and publicly read.  All bids will be date and time stamped. Bids received after 
the specified time will not be considered. 

 
Presentation:  November 10, 2025 at 9:30 a.m. during the regular session of the Commissioners’ Court in  
   the Courthouse Annex, 309 E. Milam, Suite 602, Wharton, Texas. 
 
Published:  Leader-Journal issue of October 8th and October 15th, 2025 
    
 
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
Bids will be accepted from suppliers wishing to furnish gasoline and diesel fuel for the calendar year 2026.  Bids must 
be submitted on the bid form included in this package. All pages are to be initialed and returned. Bids must be sealed 
and clearly marked “Fuel” on outside of envelope with bidder’s name and return address prominently displayed.   
This bid shall be on a unit price method as allowed under §262.028 of the Local Government Code. 
 
All bidders must complete the “Conflict of Interest Questionnaire”. The form is attached with this bid 
package.   Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government code requires that any vendor or person conducting 
business or wishing to conduct business with a county complete the questionnaire.  The completed conflict of 
interest questionnaire must be turned in with your bid proposal to the Auditors office. Any questions can be 
directed to the Texas Ethics Commission in Austin. 
 
 
Wharton County Commissioner’s Court will not consider for action any contract with a business entity unless the 
business entity submits a Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295). A business entity will generate Form 1295 
online AFTER notification of awarding of the bid.  The Texas Ethics Commission promulgated rules to implement 
the law and established an online portal at: https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/   
The successful bidder must complete this form and submit the signed and notarized form before the contract is 
executed.  Contract number is 102225 
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This bid shall be in effect January 1, 2026 - December 31, 2026. 
 
Wharton County reserves the right to award this bid to the responsible bidder who submitted the lowest and best bid 
or reject any and/or all bids and act in the best interest of the County. 
 
If awarded bidder cannot supply product, a written statement from the bidder indicating the reason, must 
be sent to the department and the County reserves the right to spot purchase product. 
 
Bidder must furnish, with the Bid Form, a Letter of Commitment or a copy of contract from their bulk supplier which 
guarantees an uninterrupted supply of gasoline and diesel fuel sufficient to meet the projected needs of the County. 
 
Gasoline and diesel fuel must be from a major refiner such as Chevron, Exxon, Texaco, Shell, Mobil or equal quality 
refiner.  This provision is in no way intended to limit competition but is intended to assure delivery of quality products 
for use by the County. 
 
To allow for price fluctuations, bids will be based upon “unbranded” lowest rack price charged to bidder from their 
bulk supplier with a firm cent per gallon above that rack price.  Awarded bidder will be required to furnish acceptable 
evidence to substantiate the rack price charge with each billing and bill of lading from pickup location.  Copies of 
bulk supplier invoices to bidder or computer generated market quotations will serve as acceptable evidence of rack 
price (OPIS).  
 
Bidder must guarantee delivery within 36 hours after the order is placed. Each department will call in the order and 
the awarded bidder will supply the day’s quote price, which will then be sent via fax or e-mail to the department 
ordering the fuel for verification of price. 
 
Bidder must furnish invoice when fuel is delivered and monthly statements to each Precinct, not later than the 
 10th day of the month covering all charges for the previous month. The bidder may expect payment within a timely 
manner after satisfactory delivery and acceptance by the department.  
 
The County is subject to the following: Federal Lust Tax, Federal Oil Spill Tax and Texas Load Fees on diesel and 
gasoline.  The County is also subject to Texas State Excise Tax on gasoline.  Bidder must apply for and secure 
exemption from Federal Excise Tax on gasoline and diesel fuel to prevent the County from paying said federal tax.   
 
Wharton County expects the lowest rack price on fuel ordered.   
 
1. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 

The awarded bidder must furnish certificates of insurance or other acceptable evidence from a reputable 
insurance company or companies acceptable to the County, licensed to write insurance in the State of Texas, 
showing the contractor is covered by insurance with the following minimum limits of liability: 

 
a. Statutory Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance with a Waiver of Subrogation in 

favor of the County.  In the event any work is sublet, the contractor shall require each subcontractor 
similarly to provide the same coverage and shall acquire evidence of such coverage of the subcontractor. 

 
b. General Public Liability, including Product Liability Insurance as follows: 

  $250,000 for injuries to one person, $500,000 for injuries to all persons in a single occurrence,  
  $100,000 for property damage or $600,000 combined single limit 

 
The policy shall be on the commercial general liability form and shall include coverage for acts of independent 
contractors.  The County shall be covered as an additional insured under this policy. 
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c. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance on all vehicles used in connection with the contract, whether owned, 
non-owned or hired as follows with the County shall be covered as an additional insured under this policy. 
  $250,000 for injuries to one person, $500,000 for injuries to all persons in a single occurrence,   
  $100,000 for property damage or $600,000 combined single limit 

 
d. The certificates of insurance furnished to the County shall contain a provision that coverage under such 

policies shall not be cancelled or materially changed unless at least 30 days prior written notice has been 
given to the County. 

 
Bidder may wish to consider: 
 
1.  The previous 12 months fuel usage as follows: 
            Gallons 

A. ULTRA LOW SULFUR, DYED DIESEL    155,000   
B. UNLEADED, REGULAR GAS       34,000 

 
2.  Delivery locations:  
  

Precinct #1 – 3738 FM 3012, Wharton, TX 77488 (Mailing: Same)    
 

Precinct #2 – 606 Dill Street, East Bernard, TX 77435 (Mailing: P.O. Box 399)    
 

Precinct #3 – 1271 CR 358, El Campo, TX 77437 (Mailing: Same)      
          Drainage    – 1271 CR 358, El Campo, TX 77437 (Mailing: Same) 
  

Precinct #4 – 415 D-A-M Road, El Campo, TX  77437 (Mailing: P.O. Box 895, El Campo, TX 77437) 
  
                     

    ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Fuel capacity on tanks in gallons:  
   Diesel  Gas Tank site 
Precinct 1  10,000  2,000 above ground 
Precinct 2    8,000  3,000 above ground 
Pct. 2 Solid Waste   9,000  0 above ground 
Precinct 3    8,000  2,000 above ground 
Drainage    4,000                          above ground 
Precinct 4   10,000  2,000 above ground              

 
 
What quantities are generally ordered per delivery for each location listed in the packet? 
-each location orders separately and run their tank low before calling in a delivery 
 
Are some of the locations confined in that a transport cannot deliver because it will not have room 
to navigate?            -Bobtail only for gasoline delivery 
 
Who is the incumbent?     -Petroleum Traders Corp. for Diesel and Gas 
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Which rack city is being used for the pricing?     - Victoria, Texas 
 
Can we get a copy of the previous bid tabulations?     -On our website under “bids” section 
 
What is the typical order amount for diesel?     -See bid spec sheet for annual gallons estimated 
 
Are there any diversity goals for WBE/SBE vendors? 
-No, we do competitive bidding for all to participate and award based upon lowest bid. 
 
Do you typically order both products at one time? 
-No, unless we’re preparing for a storm then could order both products to top off the tanks. 
 
Do you typically order more than 1 location at a time? (split delivery) 
-each precinct orders just for themselves 
-Precinct 2 has their location plus the waste station so could order diesel for one location and if there’s 
   an overflow send to the other location, but this doesn’t happen very often. 
 
Do you require Statement billing? 
-the billing would be an invoice after delivery including that day’s rack price sheet plus any markup you bid. 
 
Can all locations accept a transport truck?      -No 

 
 

 
If you are registered with SAM.GOV please send your registration status or a 
copy of your registration.  Thank you. 

 
SAM.GOV registration expiration date:  _____________________ 
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                BID FORM 
 
 
I, or we, agree to furnish and deliver gasoline and diesel fuel to Wharton County for the calendar year 2025 in 
accordance with specifications outlined at the prices stated below and shall carry out all the requirements of the bid. 
Bids will be cents per gallon above daily unbranded lowest rack price.  Applicable taxes, as stated above, will be 
charged in addition to the price quoted below: 
               Cents per gallon 

 
A.  ULTRA LOW SULFUR, DYED DIESEL     $____________    
    
B.  UNLEADED, REGULAR GAS     BOBTAIL ONLY        $____________  

 
 
Gasoline Refiner:     _______________________________ 
 
Diesel Refiner:      _______________________________ 
 
 For Information Only: 
 
 Rack Price as of      at 9 a.m., excluding tax.                    Location 
          (Date of bid) 
 
 ULTRA LOW SULFUR, DYED DIESEL   $______________   _______________  
  
 UNLEADED, REG. GAS     $______________  _______________   
 
 
 
 
________________________________________  __________________________________________ 
Company Name      Signature      
 
 
________________________________________  __________________________________________ 
Street, P.O. Box No.      Printed Name    Title   
 
 
________________________________________  __________________________________________ 
City   State   Zip Code   Phone Number    Fax Number  
 
 
________________________________________ 
E-mail Address 
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(To be Completed by Awarded Vendor)

 
 


